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HARMONY HALL
or
Béttérsea
Broad Creek, Prince George's
County
Maryland

Owner: Mr. Charles W. Collins.

Date of Erection: About 1723.

Architect and Bullder: No record.

Pregsent Condition: Good.

Number of Stories: Two.

Materials of Construction: Brick.

Other Existing Records: See text. -

Additional Data: See following pages.

b See also the following reference:
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HARMONY HALL '
"Rattersea”

Harmony aall represénts what remains of an 18th century house
situated at the headwaters of .road .reek in rrince ueorge's uJounty,
Maryland, on a gontle slope which leads down to tidewater a few hundred
feet distant, ihe brick building which stands today, was the central
portion of the house as it stood in the lat’ter half of the 18th century,
and was, no doubt, the original house as first built. wings, however,
were added on the north and south at an early date but at the time of
my acquisition of this property there was nothing left of the wings ex-
cept portions of the stone foundations partly duried in the earth,

she tract of land on which narmony nall is situated was
patented on uvstober 27, 1662 under the name of "Battersea" by Humphrey
Haggett, & lawyer, who practiced in the country court, and a residence
has been on this site from that time to the present,

1n 1688 title to this property passed to uichard iles and
rhilip mason., .he preperty was divided in half at that time and tho
west half on which the dwelling house was situated was taken by rhilip
Mason who conveyed it to william .yler. .t next passed by will in 1718
to william .yler, ur. and is described in the will as "my own dwelling
plantation" indicating the existence of a plantation dwelling house on
this property. :he will of william .yler, J4r. is dated 1755 and title
to the property passed to the eldest son, sohn .yler, although this is

not clear from the language of the will., John syler who (described
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himgelf in the deed as "of Charles Uounty, grandson and heir in tail -

Hagmen v Haw

of a sertain william Tyler, late, of Prince George's County") conveyed
100 acres of Battersea to James Marshall, gentleman (date not kmown).
This was the northwest portion of the tract upon which Harmony Hall now
stands,

According to local tradition the present building was con-
structed in 1723, the year in which the present brick duilding of Broad
Creek Churoh (St. John's) nearby was built and by the same contractor.
william 2yler, Jr. was the owner at the time and lived there until his
death in 1755. ihe early parish records (now preserved in the archives
of the washington vathedral) show that the contract for the church was
let January 26, 1722 to John Lane who agreed to do the brick work for
16,000 pounds of tobasco. un the same day a separate aoontract was let
to John Bradford, carpenter, for the woodwork including the roof, porch,
window frames, doors, doorcases, window-shutters, pulpit pews and
gallery. oradford's compensation was 14,000 pounds of tobacco. 4
quantity of bricks were left over after the church was finished in
1723 and acoording to local tradition these bricks were used in the
construction of Harmony Hall.

oeveral changes were made in the structure of Harmony Hall from
time to time but there is still sufficient internal evidence of an early
date. sor examplq, the floor boards are not tongus and grooved but have
straight edges and are doweled together with black walmut pegs cut by
hand and set in at intervals. .he chimey breasts are paneled without

mantel pieces and the pamneling is simple in form and extends to the
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ceiling. a4s originally bdbuilt, the house lacked the dormer windows and P ir ’

the bull's eye cornice which now appear on the road front to the east,
These appear to have been added about 1768 which was the year Broad
Creek Church was enlarged under an appropriation of 56,000 pounds of
tobacso authorized by the General assembly in 1763 to be levied by the
parish. &s & part of this remodelling of sarmony nall, the road front
door was changed from a single six panel door into a larger and higher
double door. ihe bricks used at this time in refashioning the doorway
and in the dbulls' eye cornice are hand-made but smaller and redder than
the original bricks., .he early workmanship and design is apparent. the
house originally had three windows in the north, and four im the south
end, but these were closed up probadly at the time of the above mentioned
changes, sor example, the beautifully pameled cupboard in the dining
room, vhich gives evidence of an early date, has behind it in the outer
wall the jaok-areh of one of these cldsed windows. .he river front to
the west stands toaayb as it was originally built, except for the steps
which 1 added in 1930.

in the readjustment of the status of the rrotestant spiscopal
Church after the uevolutionary war, Rev, Joseph Messenger was installed
as restor of .road .reek Church in 1781, .e was thus the third rector
of this church singe it was founded in 1692. uuring a portion of the
period of his ministry he ococupied Harmony :uall as the parsonage. (See
Life and iimes of walter .ulaney addison by Murray, rage 132, )

‘+he ownership of Harmony Hall by the Magruder family of wmaryland

began with its purchase by wsnoch lagruder (great grandson of the immigrant,
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Alexander magruder) from .ames warshall, gént., September 6, 1769. ae Pa%f g
owned the property until his death in 1786 and left it to his daughter,
sarah, who had married (ol. wm, Lyles, an intimate friend of weneral
George washington. anoch Magruder was a great landowner, and it is
assumed that he lived in this house until he built Mt. Lubentia near
Largo, .here is evidence that his son lived there in great style at
the close of the 18th century, although the title to the property was
in his sister, warah,

.he name narmony nall was given to the place in 1793 by wra.
walter imlany Addison who was slizabeth nesselius, daughter of the esele~
brated colonial portrait painter, when she, as a bride, lived there for
a year in 1792-93. (Walter .mlangy Addison was of the fourth generation
of the Addisons born in Maryland, being a direct desoendant of Jolonel
John Addison who emmigrated from sngland in 1670 and who founded osroad
Creek Jhurch in 1692, walter .ulany's great uncle qenry Addison was the
rector of this church, beginning his ministry in 1742 and walter inlany
hinmgelf became its fourth rector, beginning as assistant in 1800. .ohn
Addison, a brother of walter .ulany, married also in 1792, wiss sarsh

Ao Majon. Budsann Safek
Leitch,who was killed in the battle of aarlem rlains and who was an aide
to General washington. 1he two brothers, .alter .ulany and vohn addison,
were heirs respectively to uxon nill .anor and wieseborough wanor, but
both of these estates were at the time held by lessees, .he two young
couples thereupon rented from wr. .ennis Magruder, oxecuto_r of his fatheri's

will, the brick mansion on pattersea and lived here for one year. uo

happy and harmonious was their experience that wrs. walter .nlany Addison

wags *
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in & sentimental gesture named the place narmony Hall, ihis name and the

romantic story surrounding it outlived the legal name (Battersesa) and the
place has been known as uarmony iall ever since, having 1ong ago been in-
corporated in the sounty records.
~ bennis magruder was a man of great wealth having inherited from

his father large holdings of land in southern saryland, e divided his
time between his beautiful home, wt, Lubentia near rargo, and asarmony
Hall. ihe tradition still remains of his coach and four going back and
forth between the two places with uniformed out-riders.‘ vennis Magrader
was in his prime at the turn of the century when he moved in the highest
social cireles in washington as well as among the county families of
southern Maryland, iie was noted for his eladborate entertainments of dis-
tinguishing guests both at narmony sall and kt. Lubentia,

ihere are many evidences of the friendship of the wagruder family
at narmony nall with the washington family at Kt, Vernon., A few minutes
walk from .armony Hall is old uroad Creek Church where washington worshiped
from time to time, especially when the roads were impassable to rohich on
the Vvirginia side. u6 could make the trip by water all the way from it.
Vernon to the door of oroad Creek Jhurch and the tradition of these journmeys
in his barge, rowed Wy his slaves, is still alive in the commupity. ihe
original pew used by him in the church bears a memorial placed there within
recent years by a member of the washington family,

According to local tradition washington frequently, after attend-
ing services at sroad Creek .hurch, stopped for dinner at Harmomy uall.

in 1779 vemnis sagruder had married Ann Contee. 1he Contees were
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close friends of the washington family at xt., Vernon and there are evi-
dences of visiting back and forth, mention deing made in washington:is diary
of the Jontee's stopping at mut, Vernon, .he distance between a.armony
Hall and =t, Vernon is very short, partieularly by water, it will be re-
membered that travel in tidewater Maryland and virginia in the early days
was more freguent by water than by land on aceount of the absence of good
roads.

About a quarter of a mile down the road from the chureh on a
corner of the narmony nall tract, there was in washington's day a tavern
called the white .orse sign, 1his tavern was one of the local landmarks
in washington's day. 1t was on the riscataway-Alexandria road, the chief
thoroughfare to the north on the Maryland side of the rotomac in colonial
days ,and washington, no doubt, paused there upon occasion during his
frequent going basck and forth on this side of the river,

Broad Jreek occupied a status in the early civilization of
uaryland far different from that which it occupies today. it will de
remmbered that the scttlement of asryland by the snglish began at ot.
Mary‘s ity about 50 miles south of sroad ureek in 1634, A little less
than thirty years later the first colonists began to settles around .road
Creek, .t is worthy of note that the leadership in the colonization around
Broad (reek was taken by gentlemen of birth and education who held al-
legiance to the (hurch of -ngland, .t was from the first a protestant
community and remained se., At the time that the churech and such residential
buildings as zarmony uall, want water, uxon alll wanor, warburton Manor,

srankland and others of this period were constructed, this settlement
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marked the furthest point north of the white man's civilization of
southern waryland. .here were no c¢ities to the north of .road .reek.
Alexandria and Georgetown were chartered nearly a century later and
the oity of washington built nearly a century and a half later, ihe
cities of that day were to the south, that is, ot, mary's Jity, .eonard-
town, riscataway, upper warlboro, and Amnapolis. .ransportation was had
by sail boats, barges, horseback, carriage, and stage coach, vwhen the
railroad was adopted generally as a means of transporiation no line was
built along the waryland shore of the rotomac. in faet the shoreline
being indented with so many tidewater estuaries made the comstruction
of a railroad impractical. 4s a consequence this whole territory became
gradually cut off from contact with the progress of civilization as it
developed to the north, rlantations and estates were abandoned and
many old manor houses, which once boasted of the highest social distino-
tion, fell into ruins. ihe use of the sautomobile however snd the con-
struction of automobile roads (following in many cases the old stage coach
roads, are gradually bringing this part of wmaryland into renewed contact
with the progress of the world while still preserving the glamor of
romance and adventure of that early day.

Author: cCharles w, Collins, wsational rress snilding, «ashington,
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Approved: Major H, Brooks Price, District Officer
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HABS NO. MD-10-8
Addendum To: HARMONY HALL
(Battersea)
10500 Livingstone Road
Friendly vic.

Location: 10511 Livingston Road, Fort Washington, Prince George’s County, Maryland

Present Owner: National Park Service

Present Occupant: Frank Calhoun and Carlton Huhn, under a long-term lease with the National Park
Service

Present Use: Private residence and horse farm

Significance: Harmony Hall is a fine example of early Georgian architecture. Built during the

early to mid 18th century as a one-room-deep brick manor house with
exceptional interior detailing, Harmony Hall is among the most distinguished
early homes in Prince George’s County. It has been the home of many wealthy
county landholders over the centuries including the Tylers, Magruders, Addisons
and Lyles. It is also of note for its spectacular river-front location, overlooking
the Potomac River at Broad Creek. :

Description: Harmony Hall is a two-and-a-half story, seven-bay-wide, one-room deep brick
plantation house with almost identical carriage and riverfront facades. The east
front differs from the west rear only in the doorway treatment and in the addition
of a roof pediment and dormers on the east facade. From the east front the
grounds are flat, large trees flank the house, and there is a circular driveway.
To the west rear, however, the house sits high on a knoll overlooking Broad
Creek. A Ha-Ha prevents the horses in the lower pasture from entering the west
lawn.

The brick walls are laid in Flemish bond with a molded-brick water table, and
a beltcourse at the east front and west rear. The east front doorway, located to
the center of the facade, has a narrow wood surround consisting of a large inner
bead, double four-panel doors, and is covered by a pedimented portico with
benches to either side. The west entry has a frontispiece with fluted pilasters and
a pediment, and has a single six-panel door. This entry--which is elevated due
to the sloping site--has a balustraded stoop with a two-run stairway to either side.

The typical window is a nine-over-nine-light-sash on the first floor, and a nine-
over-six-light-sash on the second. There are narrower six-over-six and six-over-
four-light sash windows flanking the first floor entries and the center second floor
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bays, front and rear. The windows have flat-arched brick lintels, wood sills, and
a narrow inner-bead surround. The only windows currently at the sides are small
four-light casements to either side of the chimney block in the gable ends (it
appears that windows at the sides have been bricked in). As mentioned, a large
brick pediment with an oval window has been added at the east front, as well as
flanking gable-roofed dormers with round-arched eleven-over-six-light-sash
windows, with pilasters supporting a boxed return. The house has a gable roof
covered with asphalt shingles. The cornice at the east front has crenelated
molding, and there is dentil molding at the west facade. There is a interior brick
chimney at each gable end.

To the south side of the main block is a two part wing, a recent addition which
replaces a previous addition. These two sections telescope out from the main
block. The center section is a one-and-a-half story, one-room deep, two-bay
wide brick structure with a gable roof with wall dormers (one front and two
rear). The brick is laid in Flemish bond and the nine-over-six-light-sash
windows have flat-arched lintels to match the main block. The section to the
south end is similar but is slightly shorter and wider. It is also two bays wide
with entries at all sides--french doors at the south side and west rear.

The interior has a one-room-deep, center-hall plan, with a wide stairhall with
flanking parlor and dining room. An elegant, decorative stairway--the width of
the hall--rises along the south wall to a landing, turns ninety-degrees to a second,
longer landing and turns again along the north wall and continues to the second
floor. This is an open-well, open string stairway with low risers, turned
balusters--three per step--and turned newel posts, and scrolling S-patterns in the
step ends. There is a shadow rail, complete with newel posts, along the inside
wall of the stairway. The walls are plaster with a wide horizontal-board
wainscoting with chair rail in a reticulated oval-and-diamond-pattern fretwork,
and there is a dentiled cornice molding. The doorway and window surrounds are
stepped architrave (except the front doorway--undoubtedly a replacement--which
has molded trim with cornerblocks) and the windows are recessed into the wall
(creating shallow window seats). The floors are of wide rough-finished boards.

The north parlor has similar moldings, including wainscoted walls, but with a
triglyph-and-metope-pattern chair rail, and a dentiled cornice. The windows are
the same, with interior paneled shutters which fit into the splayed reveals. The
fireplace has a shouldered bolection molding and a bracketed mantel shelf, and
there is a simple overmantel with an old painting to the center.! The south
dining room has no wainscoting, only a plain chair rail, and the cornice is
without dentils. On the south wall is a fireplace and china cupboard with paneled
walls. The fireplace has only a simple bolection molding and no shelf. The

! The painting could be the work of Gustavus Hesselius, the famous colonial painter, whose daughter, Elizabeth,
lived here with her husband, Walter Dulany Addison, during the late 18th century.
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cupboard has round-arched paneled doors with a keystone molding. A doorway
to the other side of the fireplace leads into the (modern) kitchen wing.

The second floor, like the first, consists of a large hall flanked by chambers.
The second floor, however, has simpler moldings than those found on the first.
There is a molded chair rail (without the fretwork or wainscoting), a coved
cornice, stepped architrave doorways and architrave window surrounds. In the
hall, there is a boxed-winder stairway to a finished upper level. In the north
(bed) chamber, a bathroom and closet have been added which flank the doorway,
creating a hall into the chamber. There is a fireplace at the north wall with a
shouldered architrave surround, three-part mantel shelf and a shouldered
overmantel. The south chamber has a bathroom and closet added to the
southwest corner. There is a fireplace on the south wall (once closed, but since
reopened), with a simple architrave surround only. A doorway to the east side
of the fireplace leads into the wing. (The 1924 Albert P. Erb drawings in the
HABS collection show this room as two, with a north-south partition wall.)

The house was built in the early to mid 18th century. 1723 is the date
traditionally given. This was based on the belief that the builder of nearby St.
Johns Church built this house after finishing the church in 1722. This, however,
has not been documented. This property was originally referred to as "Battersea”
which was the name given to it when patented by Humphrey Haggett on the 27th
of October 1662. By the early part of the 18th century, the property had been
acquired by William Tyler. His will of 1718, leaving the property to his son
William Tyler, Jr., mentions on the property, "my own dwelling plantation,”
indicating there was perhaps an earlier dwelling here (Collins). From William,
Jr., the property passed to his son, John Tyler, in 1755. It is therefore due to
the many years spent here that Harmony Hall is attributed to the Tyler family.

In 1769, Battersea was purchased by Enoch Magruder, a wealthy county
landholder who had previously purchased the adjoining property "Want Water."
Because Enoch Magruder owned so much property in the county, it is difficult
to know whether he ever resided at Battersea. Some sources believe that both
he, and later his son, Dennis Magruder, split their time between Battersea and
Mount Lubentia in Largo. After his death in 1786, both Battersea and the
adjoining Want Water passed to his daughter, Sarah, and her husband, Col.
William Lyles. Sarah and William most likely lived at Want Water, so perhaps
Battersea was the occasional home of Enoch and Dennis Magruder. It is known
that Battersea was rented in 1793-94 by two brothers, Walter and Dulaney
Addison and their brides, who designated the home "Harmony Hall."

Harmony Hall--as it was thus renamed--remained in the Magruder/Lyles family
until November of 1850 when it was purchased by William J. Edelen (Deed JBB
7:92). It would remain in the Edelen family for the next twenty-five years or so.
From 1892 until 1929 the property was owned by Richard Stein and was known
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as "Broad Creek Farm" (Deeds JWB 21:376 & 326:376). In 1929 it was
purchased by Charles and Sue Collins. The Collinses added a one-and-a-half
story pantry wing, and a kitchen building connected by a covered passage, in
1930. These additions have since been removed and the current telescoping
wings built. (Evidence of brick foundations indicate that the house was once
flanked by brick wings.) Charles Collins died in December of 1964, and two
years later his widow sold Harmony Hall to the National Park Service, retaining
a life estate. It is now under long-term lease and improvements and restoration
work are underway.

Fitzgerald, Edmund J. and Gary Scott (NCR). National Register of
Historic Places Inventory--Nomination Form, Battersea (Harmony Hall),
prepared November 16, 1979.

HABS documentation of Harmony Hall (Battersea), including photographs by
Albert S. Burns (1935), drawings by Albert P. Erb (1924), and historical
text by Charles Collins (1936).

Prince George’s County Land Records, Prince George’s County
Courthouse, deeds, etc. as cited in text.

Catherine C. Lavoie, HABS, January 1992



	md0524cover0001
	md0524data0001
	md0524coveradd0001
	md0524coveradd0002
	md0524dataadd0001
	md0524coveradd0003

